1986

Michael M. Sweat vs. Raymond J. Eves: Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

I. STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

Where the Plaintiff seller under a real estate contract is unable to recover for the buyer's breach because of the Plaintiff's own breach, may the Plaintiff seller use a claim of unjust enrichment to recover the down payment from another who unjustly withheld it from the **buyer**?

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

For purposes of this Appeal, the Defendant relies on the facts as found by the trial court and as set forth in the Memorandum Decision as follows:

In February, 1980, Plaintiff (as buyer) and Raymond J. Eves Company, Inc. (as seller), entered into a uniform real estate contract. The evidence is unclear as to what degree each of the parties performed under the contract and this Court is unable to determine that either party fully performed its obligations under the contract.

Plaintiff transferred a mobile home with a value of \$2,800.00 to defendant which

should have been transferred to Raymond J. Eves Company, Inc. as a down payment on the property in question. The defendant, Raymond J. Eves, individually, kept possession of the mobile home and did not transfer it to the corporation. Defendant did not pay the corporation \$2,800.00 in exchange for his right to keep the mobile home.

Memorandum Decision page 1,
Appendix, Exhibit 1. See also
Findings of Fact, paragraphs 1, 2
and 3, Appendix Exhibit 2.

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Unjust enrichment occurs whenever a person has and retains money or benefits which in justice and equity belong to another.

The trial court found that the defendant RAYMOND EVES unjustly receive a mobile home which should have been the lawful property of RAYMOND J. EVES CO., INC. By the court's own findings, RAYMOND J. EVES CO., INC. is the victim of unjust enrichment, not the plaintiff. The trial court has misinterpreted the law of unjust enrichment and has ordered restitution to the wrong victim.

IV. ARGUMENT

**POINT ONE: THE CONCEPT OF "UNJUST ENRICHMENT" IS AN
EQUITABLE DEVICE FOR RESTORING PROPERTY
TO ITS RIGHTFUL OWNER.**

"Unjust enrichment occurs whenever a person has and retains money or benefits which in justice and equity belong to another" L & A Drywall, Inc. v. Whitmore Construction Co., Inc., 608 P.2d 626 (Utah 1980) at 630. See also: Baldwin v. Vantage Corp., 676 P.2d 413 (Utah 1984); Barrett v. Stevens, 690 P.2d 553

(Utah 1984); General Leasing Co. v. Manivest Corp., 667 P.2d 596 (Utah 1983); Dalton v. Jerico Const. Co., 642 P.2d 748 (Utah 1982); Baugh v. Darley, 112 Utah 1, 184 P.2d 335 (1947).

An order or judgment (formerly writ) of restitution directs the return of property to its rightful owner.

POINT TWO: THE RIGHTFUL OWNER OF THE \$2,800.00 MOBILE HOME RECEIVED BY THE DEFENDANT WAS RAYMOND J. EVES CO., INC., NOT THE PLAINTIFF, BY THE TRIAL COURT'S OWN FINDINGS.

In the court's own words:

Plaintiff transferred a **mobile home** with a value of \$2,800.00 to defendant which **should have been transferred to Raymond J. Eves Company, Inc.** as a down payment on the property in question. The defendant, Raymond J. Eves, individually, kept possession of the mobile home and **did not transfer it to the corporation.** Defendant **did not pay the corporation** \$2,800.00 in exchange for his right to keep the mobile home.

Memorandum Decision. See also identical findings in Findings of Fact paragraphs 1, 2 and 3.

The seller corporation was the rightful owner of the down payment, and was the victim of any unjust enrichment by the defendant. Any restitution should have been ordered to the corporation, not to the plaintiff.