1986

Michael M. Sweat vs. Raymond J. Eves: Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

I. STATEMENT OF FACTS

For purposes of this appeal, the Respondent supplements the facts of the Appellant and relies upon the facts found by the trial court as set forth in the Memorandum Decision and Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, both of which are attached as exhibits to this brief.

In February of 1980, Plaintiff as buyer entered a Uniform Real Estate Contract for the sale of a building lot. As part of the transaction, Plaintiff transferred a mobile home with a value of \$2,800.00 to the Defendant as a down payment on the property in question.

Memorandum Decision page 1,
Findings of Fact No.

The purported seller was Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc., but the contract was signed by Raymond J. Eves personally, as was the preliminary earnest money agreement.

Findings of Fact No. 7.

Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. received performance by the Respondent until Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. breached the contract.

Findings of Fact No. 4.

As a result of the contract having been breached by Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc., Plaintiff incurred a net loss of \$2,800.00, representing the difference between the value of Plaintiff's performance and the credit received by Plaintiff toward the purchase of a house.

Findings of Fact No. 6.

The building lot contracted for was never conveyed to the Plaintiff.

Findings of Fact No. 3.

II. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Unjust enrichment occurs whenever a person has and retains money or benefits which in justice and equity belong to another.

The Defendant retained a mobile home with a value of \$2,800.00. That benefit should belong to the Plaintiff, because Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. failed to convey the contracted for building lot. In addition, when the smoke cleared, Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. was left with performance by the Respondent, the Respondent lost the mobile home valued at \$2,800.00. The Appellant wrongfully obtained a mobile home at a value of \$2,800.00 and Plaintiff was damaged in the sum of \$2,800.00.

III. ARGUMENT

POINT ONE: THE APPELLANT WAS UNJUSTLY ENRICHED.

"Unjust enrichment occurs whenever a person has and retains money or benefits which in justice and equity belong to another." L & A Drywall, Inc. v. Whitmore Construction Co., Inc., 608 P.2d 626 (Utah 1980). In order for a claim based on unjust enrichment to be successful, there must be (1) a benefit conferred on one person by another; (2) an appreciation or knowledge by the conferee of the benefit; and (3) the acceptance or retention by the conferee of the benefit under such circumstances as to make it inequitable for the conferee to retain the benefit without payment of its value. Barrett v. Stevens, 690 P.2d 553, 57 (Utah 1984). In the present case, a benefit was conferred upon Appellant, i.e., a mobile home with a value of \$2,800.00. The Appellant appreciated and had knowledge of the benefit, because he did not transfer the mobile home to Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. It would be unjust for the Appellant to retain the benefit, because he paid nothing for the benefit. It would be unjust for Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. to retain the benefit, because Raymond J. Eves, Inc. breached the contract for the building lot with the Respondent. As a result, when the smoke cleared, the Respondent incurred a net loss of \$2,800.00. Findings of Fact No. 6. Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. received performance by the Respondent until Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. breached the agreement. Findings of Fact No. 4. And,

the Appellant received the \$2,800.00 mobile home. The rightful owner of the \$2,800.00 mobile home is not the Appellant. The rightful owner of the \$2,800.00 mobile home is not Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc., because Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. breached the Uniform Real Estate Contract entered into by the Respondent as buyer and Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. as seller. Therefore, the value of the mobile home should be paid to the Respondent.


POINT TWO: THE TRIAL COURT JUDGMENT OF \$2,800.00 MAY BE UPHELD ON A BREACH OF CONTRACT THEORY.

The Court found that although the Uniform Real Estate Contract purported to be a contract between Raymond J. Eves Co., Inc. and the Respondent, the contract was personally signed by the Appellant, as was the earnest money agreement. The Court also found that the contracted for lot was not conveyed to the Respondent. The Court also found, as a result of the contract having been breached, Plaintiff incurred a net loss of \$2,800.00. The measure of damages in such a case is the amount that will put the Respondent in as good a position as he would have been had there been no breach of the contract. Alexander v. Brown, 646 P.2d 692 (Utah 1982). In the present case, to put the Plaintiff in such a position would require an award of \$2,800.00, the difference between the value of Plaintiff's performance and what Plaintiff received as a result of the contract. Findings of Fact No. 6.

IV. CONCLUSION

The trial court's judgment of \$2,800.00 to the Respondent can be upheld either on an unjust enrichment theory or on a breach of contract theory and should be upheld.